
 

TO:  MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 

FROM:  ROB FITZROY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE:  AUGUST 18, 2022 

SUBJECT: OFFICE LEASE MODIFICATION 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Commission consider taking the 
following actions: 

Action 1:  Review the proposed lease modifications summary and draft lease 
agreement (Attachment A and B), and direct Chair of the Commission to sign 
the lease agreement.   

DISCUSSION 

LAFCO began leasing 1042 Pacific St. Suite A on May 31, 2001.  The lease was 
last modified on August 21, 2012, at which time the monthly lease rate was 
increased to $3,056.45 (plus approximately $330 in utilities), with a 5 year 
lease agreement, after 5 years the agreement defaulted to month to month.  
It has been approximately 10 years since the lease was modified and the 
monthly rate has not changed since that time.  In June, the property owner 
engaged staff regarding lease extensions and modifications.  Staff 
coordinated with the property owner on a new lease agreement.  Key points 
of the updated lease agreement are as follows: 

• Monthly lease will increase from $3,056.45 (plus an average of $330 /
month in utilities) to $3,500 total (payment of utilities no longer
required)

• Property owner will assume payment of all utilities (currently LAFCO
pays electricity, gas, which average $330 / month)

• Total office space expenses will increase by $114 / month from $3,386
(including utilities) to a flat rate of $3,500

• 5 year term beginning September 2022, at the end of 5 years there is
an option to extend the lease for another 5 years

• Includes 180 day cancellation at any time for LAFCO’s benefit
• $10,000 stipend from property owner to conduct certain needed

improvements such as interior painting and/or floor replacement
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ANALYSIS 

While the rate will increase from $3,056 to $3,500, the property owner is assuming payment 
of all utilities currently paid by LAFCO, which average $330/month.  LAFCO currently 
expends approximately $3,386 for office space and utilities.  The property owner is 
proposing a flat rate lease of $3,500 that includes all utilities or a $114 increase from current 
expenditures ($3,386). This represents an increase of 3%. There is also a 180-day notice to 
allow termination of the lease at any time by LAFCO should the need arise.  As noted above, 
at the end of year 5 in 2027, there is an option for a lease extension for another 5 years with 
incremental increases thereafter – no decision is necessary for the 5 year extension in 2027 
at this time.   

Staff evaluated other options for office space and current market rates for lease space 
within the area.  Current market rates for similar locations and amenities average from 
$2.20/ square foot (SF) to $4.50 / SF.  The existing lease rate plus utilities is $1.93 / SF, and 
the increase to $3,500 for years 2022-2027 will be $2.00 / SF. Overall, the proposed rate 
increase is competitive when compared to other lease options currently available.   

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that LAFCO renews the lease because it locks in a competitive rate for 
up to 5 years at an office location that has served LAFCO well for over 20 years with the 
option to cancel at any time with 180 days’ notice.  In addition, the proposed cost increase 
will not necessitate a budget augmentation for Fiscal Year 22-23.  Total budgeted office 
lease / utility expenditures for FY 22-23 are $41,700 and the new lease would be $42,000, a 
$300 difference for the entire year.  The $300 difference can be accommodated in the 
adopted FY 22-23 budget.   

In 5 years when the proposed lease terminates, staff can reevaluate the ‘option to extend’ 
based on market conditions at that time and whether it makes sense to enter into such an 
agreement.  

Additional Options 
1. The Commission may direct staff to negotiate further with the property owner if

any terms are not to the satisfaction of the Commission.
2. The Commission may direct staff to further evaluate other office lease options

within the downtown area or property acquisitions.

Attachment A:  Lease Agreement 
Attachment B:  Additional Terms  
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Attachment A 

Lease Agreement
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Attachment B 

Additional Terms
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